


         Part A General Information

Commission's General Information

List of Abbreviations / Acronyms

Strategic Overview

Legislative and Other Mandates

High Level Structure: 2013/14 and 2014/15

Foreword by the Chairperson 

Commissioners: Former and Current

Overview of the Accounting Officer

         Part B Performance information

Accounting Officer's Statement of responsibility for Performance Information 

Overview of the Commission's Performance - 

Performance information by Programme:

Narrative •  Investigations and Conflict Resolution (ICR)

•  Research and Policy Development (RPD)

•  Public Education and Advocacy (PEA)

•  Community Engagement (CE)

         Part C Governance

Risk Management 

Fraud and corruption 

Code of conduct

Internal Audit and Audit committee 

         Part D Human Resource Management

Corporate Service and Human Resources Oversight 

         Part E Financial Information

Report of the Audit Committee 

Accounting Officer’s Statement of Responsibility for Annual Financial 
Statement

Report of the Auditor General

Annual financial Statements

2

3

4

4-8

9-10

11

12

13

14

14-15

16-19

19-21

22-24

24-26

34

34

34

34

35

36-37

38

39-41

43-71

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CRL COMMISSION 2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT 

Page



2 

Part A

GENERAL INFORMATION

COMMISSION'S GENERAL INFORMATION

Full name of the entity

Physical address of 
Head Office

Postal address

Contact telephone 
number

Email address

Website address

Facebook address

Twitter handle

Commission for the Promotion and Protection of 
the Rights of Cultural, Religious and Linguistic 
Communities

33 Hoofd Street, Forum IV Braampak, 
Braanfontein, Johannesburg

Private Bag X 90 000 Houghton 2041

011 358 9100

chairperson@crlcommission.org.za

www.crlcommission.org.za

Like us              CRL Rights Commission

Follow us          @CRL_Commission



CRL COMMISSION 2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT 3 

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS / ACRONYMS

LS&CR

EO

RPD

CM

PEE

CE

SM

AC

AG

Manco

SMS

MMS

MTEF

CC

HR

NDP

SABC

DAC

NCRF

ICASA

Pansalb

Legal Services and Conflict Resolution

Executive Office

Research and Policy Development Unit

Communication and Marketing Unit

Public Engagement and Education 

Community Engagement

Senior Manager

 Audit Committee

Auditor General

Management Committee

Senior Management Services

Middle Management Services

Medium Term Expenditure Framework

Community Councils

Human Resources

National Development Plan

South African Broadcasting Cooperation

Department of Arts and Culture

National Community Radio Station

The Independent Communications Authority of South Africa

Pan South African Language Board
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Part A

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

Vision 

Through networking, community- and youth development we enable the co-existence of 
cultures, religions and languages in a model which serves as an example to South Africa and 
the rest of the world.

Mission 

To be an agent of social transformation, we acknowledge; represent; and celebrate unity in 
diversity.

Values

We will be the change we want to see by integrating the values underpinning the Commission for 
the Protection and Promotion of the Rights of Cultural, Religious and Linguistic Communities 
Act, Act 19 of 2002, into our organisational fibre through:

Ÿ Peace and Harmony
Ÿ Honesty
Ÿ Mutual Respect
Ÿ Integrity
Ÿ Transparency
Ÿ Accountability
Ÿ Fairness and Equality
Ÿ Social Responsibility

Legislative and other Mandates

4.1 Constitutional Mandate

The Commission for the Promotion and Protection of the rights of Cultural, Religious 
and Linguistic Communities (CRL Rights Commission) is a Constitutional Institution 
established in terms of Section 181(c) of the Constitution of the Republic of South 
Africa, 1996 to strengthen constitutional democracy. The CRL Rights Commission was 
established in order to protect and promote the rights of cultural, religious and 
linguistic communities.  Its mandate is achievable through both proactive and reactive 
approach.  

The CRL Rights Commission is an independent juristic person mandated to perform its 
work impartially, without fear, favour or prejudice. Its findings and recommendations 
must be implemented in order to protect cultural, religious and linguistic rights. It was 
established to fulfil the following objectives:

• To promote and develop peace, friendship, humanity, tolerance and national unity 
among and within cultural, religious and linguistic communities, on the basis of 
equity, non-discrimination and free association;
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• To foster mutual respect among cultural, religious and linguistic communities;

• To promote the right of communities in order to develop their historically diminished 
heritage;

• To promote respect for and further the protection of the rights of cultural, religious and 
linguistic communities;  and 

• To recommend the establishment or recognition of community councils in accordance 
with section 36 or 37. 

4.2 Legislative Mandate

The Commission for the Promotion and Protection of the rights of Cultural, Religious and 
Linguistic Communities Act 19 of 2002 (The CRL Rights Commission Act) gives effect to 
section 185(4) of the Constitution by regulating the powers and functions of the 
Commission.  

The CRL Rights Commission's functions include to conduct information and education 
programmes to promote public standing of the objects, role and activities of the 
Commission; research any issue concerning the rights of cultural, religious and linguistic 
communities; promote awareness among the youth of South Africa of the diversity of 
cultural, religious and linguistic communities and their rights; facilitate the resolution of 
conflict between and within cultural, religious and linguistic communities or between 
any such community and an organ of state where the cultural, religious or linguistic 
rights of a community are affected; establish and maintain a database of cultural, 
religious and linguistic community organisations and institutions and experts on these 
communities; and make recommendations to the appropriate organs of state regarding 
legislation that impacts, or may impact, on cultural, religious and linguistic rights of 
communities

The CRL Rights Commission has the power to investigate and monitor matters related to 
cultural, religious and linguistic rights.  Furthermore, it may subpoena any person to 
appear before it and may institute a legal action on its own.

4.3 Policy Mandates

Based on the election manifesto and the medium term strategic framework, Cabinet 
agreed on twelve outcomes that reflect the desired development impacts in accordance 
with the policy priorities of government.

In respect of these twelve outcomes the CRL Rights Commission will contribute to 
outcome twelve: An efficient and effective development orientated public service and an 
empowered, fair and inclusive citizenship.

The contribution of the CRL Rights Commission will be in respect of an empowered fair 
and inclusive citizenship.
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Situational Analysis 

5.1 Performance Environment

The CRL Rights Commission has a strong management team that is both driven and 
focused on moving the organisation towards a more dynamic and progressive thinking 
organisation, but during the strategy session it was clear that a management team in itself 
is not sufficient to make this needed transformation. Based on this, two key components to 
drive the transformation have been identified as follows: (1) organisational structure to 
align with the organisational strategic objectives, and (2) leadership management. 

The current organisational structure needs to be assessed and aligned to drive the 
strategic objectives in so far as (a) Span of Control (b) Decision-making and authorisation; 
(C) roles and responsibilities and performance management.  Furthermore, there is a need 
for leadership to not only set the strategic direction, but move the entity collectively forward 
through its human resources and people management structure and processes. As such it 
has been recommended that CRL Commission empowers its Leaders and develop a 
leadership culture within the organisation. 

The CRL Rights Commission has a strong platform of skills and knowledge that drives the 
success within the organisation, but performance management, and in particular a High 
Performance Culture has been identified as a need to move the entity beyond its current 
realities to a move performance focus and bottom-line driven organisation. A High 
Performance team is defined as:

• In the business terms: a team that has the highest possible output at the lowest 
possible cost; and

• In personal terms: a group of people who freely help each other accomplish tasks 
and feel invested in the team's success.

As such a need has been identified to drive performance management within the 
organisation through a formal performance management system that links key 
performance area to measurable outcomes not only drive a culture of performance and 
accountability management, but also a culture of continues improvement and 
development. 

Furthermore, performance management is driven through a culture of open and direct 
communication, and as such the organisation has identified the need to implement a 
communication strategy and platform that ensures collaboration and collective 
understanding and buy-in at all levels within the organisation. 

5.2 Organizational Environment

Both general and specific risks associated with its organizational environment have been 
identified by the Management. As in every organizational environment, specific risks relate 
to the culture of resistance where introduction of innovative change management becomes 
difficult due to bureaucratic abuse and reactionary attitudes. On the other hand general 
risks associated with the Commission relate to low desire and ability of staff to move 
beyond their current mind set and realities. 

5
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The management is engaged in trying to introduce change management which is based on 
performance management principles, however on the other hand the Commission does not have 
enough resources to discharge its mandate.  In some instances programmes have funds to 
spend while others do not have funds or the programmes need to cut down on their expenditure. 

Certain key factors that should be present in an organizational environment with respect to 
meeting objectives include the following:

• Leadership qualities
• Improved productivity
• Transformed workplace
• Employee contribution
• Designed and developed organizational environment

5.3 Description of the Strategic Planning process

The CRL Rights Commission is able to carry out an assessment of the external environment by 
identifying and assessing strengths and weaknesses, opportunities and threats in both external 
environment and internal component (SWOT). Planning is a critical component of good 
management and governance and the CRL Rights Commission and through the strategic 
planning effort, the CRL was able to identify questions and issues to be addressed. 

The Commission was able to define or review its organizational values, vision and strategies 
whilst including the identification of goals and outcomes. The CRL Rights Commission was 
further able to develop a series of goals which describe the organization in five (5) years. 
Strategies have been agreed upon in order to reach goals and those strategies need to be 
measured against the environmental factors. This will include the development of a broad 
strategic direction with respect to current and new programmes, advocacy, collaborations and 
other approaches.

Goals, specific objectives and business plans are being developed on an annual basis. The 
development of objectives and annual work plans required both Commissioners and staff input, 
with staff taking major responsibilities for program-related goals. A finalised written strategic 
plan with outputs of each major action was formalised.

Monitoring and evaluation are the last two phases of the implementation of an agreed strategic 
plan that can be measured against the external environment of the Commission.
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Strategic Outcome Orientated Goals 

The CRL Rights Commission is ensuring that the outcome of its work brings about positive gains 
for the benefit of the country as whole. It has set out its strategic goals and objectives that will 
be implemented in the coming financial years. The Commission will only be able to realise an 
impact of its work when there is a link between what is planned as against what is implemented. 
Targets are always realistic and implementable and measurable.

6

Strategic plan

DRIVEDRIVE
OPERATIONAL OPERATIONAL 
EXCELLENCEEXCELLENCE

• Provide strategic leadership
• Management structure with roles and responsibility to drive 

and manage delivery against operational strategy
• Support roles, including the provision of HR Management  
• Operationalise community councils

INCREASEINCREASE
AWARENESSAWARENESS

& MARKETING& MARKETING

• Provision of sustainable communication and marketing 
strategy to enhance the profile of the commission 

• Community/Youth Dialogue
• Public Education and Advocacy on the culture, religious and 

linguistic rights

EFFECTIVEEFFECTIVE
LEGAL SERVICESLEGAL SERVICES

& CONFLICT& CONFLICT
RESOLUTIONRESOLUTION

• Facilitation of conflict resolution in respect of cultural, 
religious and linguistic rights

• Formulation of recommendations to stakeholders

ENHANCEENHANCE
RESEARCH &RESEARCH &

DEVELOPMENTDEVELOPMENT

• Establish network with research organisation & research 
units in institutes of higher learning

• Compile research papers to inform position on C-R-L 
matters to government

• R&D to make a follow up on certain practices & culture as 
found in certain communities

• Publications to help build resource & information Centre

MONITORINGMONITORING
& REVIEW& REVIEW

• Internal in accordance with statutory structures
• Develop monitoring and evaluation tool
• Monitor implementations of recommendations
• Make recommendations and amendment of policies and 

legislation
• Regular feedback to relevant stakeholders
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High Level Structure for the period under review 2013/14 

Rev Dr. Wesley Mabuza
Chairperson

Ms Julia Mabale
Deputy Chairperson

Adv Pheagane Solomon 
Moreroa

Chief Executive Officer

Mr Edward Mafadza
Senior Manager:

Community Engagement

Mr Brian Makeketa
Senior Manager:

Research & Policy 

Ms Tirhani Mabasa
Senior Manager:

Public Education & 
Advocacy

Mr Cornelius M Smuts
Chief Financial Officer

Ms Tebogo Mabitsi
Acting Senior Manager:

Corporate Services

Adv Kgositoi Sedupane
Senior Manager:  ICR/
Acting Chief Executive

Officer
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High Level Structure 2014/15

This Team is responsible for the compilation of this Annual Report and the signing off of it.

Ms Thoko Mkhwanazi  Xaluva
Chairperson

Prof Luka David Mosoma
Deputy Chairperson

Mr TE Mafadza
Acting CEO/

Senior Manager:  PEE

Adv KA Sedupane
Senior Manager:
Legal Services

Mr B Makeketa
Senior Manager:

Research & Policy
Development 

Ms T Mabasa
Senior Manager:

Communication &
Marketing

Mr CM Smuts
Chief Financial

Officer
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Foreword by the Chairperson

The Commission for the Promotion and Protection of the Rights of cultural, religious and linguistic 
Communities (CRL Rights Commission) was established in terms of Chapter 9 of the Constitution of 
the Republic of South Africa.  According to the Constitution, the primary responsibility of the 
Commission is to promote and protect cultural, religious and linguistic rights of communities.  
Additional functions of the Commission are detailed in section 5 of the CRL Rights Commission Act, 
No. 19 of 2002.

This Annual Report is for the year 2013/14 and describes the work of the CRL Rights Commission in 
fulfilling its Constitutional mandate and in meeting its obligations as dictated by the CRL Rights 
Commission Act and other relevant legislation.

Since 2004 when the first set of Commissioners were appointed, the CRL Rights Commission has 
progressively increased the number of cultural, religious and linguistic community councils.  For 
instance, there were 270 community councils registered and recognised in the CRL Rights 
Commission's community councils data base by the end of 2013/14 financial year.   These 
increases reflect the enthusiasm of communities in South Africa, both young and old to participate in 
promoting and protecting the cultural, religious and linguistic rights of the communities that they 
represent.  Other positive developments were that the Commission managed to implement some of 
the recommendations which were made by cultural, religious and linguistic communities in its 
2012/13 National Consultative Conference. 

The Commission issued several media statements in response to issues related to CRL rights 
matters such as the; recognition of days of religious celebration such as Diwali, Africa Day, 
Christmas, Easter and Ramadan.

According to the Constitution, organs of State are required to provide assistance to Chapter 9 
institutions, including the CRL Rights Commission as and when requested.  In the previous year, the 
CRL Rights Commission continued to enjoy the support from a number of Government Departments 
including Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs and Arts and Culture, Department of 
Women, children and people with disabilities as well as Social development.  With this support, the 
CRL Rights Commission managed to execute its work with ease and we therefore express our 
appreciation to these departments for their commitment towards sensitizing and promoting cultural, 
religious and linguistic rights to local communities.

We also would like to express our appreciation to Parliament and in particular, the Portfolio 
Committee on Cooperative governance and Traditional Affairs which has always provided guidance 
and advice in the performance of our mandate.   Lastly, we would like to express our gratitude to all 
Acting Chief Executive Officers in the 2013/14 financial year and the rest of the staff of the CRL 
Rights Commission for their dedication and hard work.  Throughout the years, this commitment has 
made South Africans confident in our ability to promote and protect cultural, religious and linguistic 
Rights of communities.

Ms Thoko Mkhwanazi-Xaluva
Chairperson
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Former Commissioners      2013 - 2014 Financial Year

Current Commissioners      2014 - 2019

Chairperson
Rev Dr. Wesley Mabuza

Chairperson
Thoko Mkhwanazi-Xaluva

Deputy Chairperson
Ms Julia Mabale

Deputy Chairperson
Luka David Mosoma

Commissioner
D Moodley

Commissioner
Anton Knoetze

Commissioner
NS Zulu

Commissioner
M Mathebula

Commissioner
Sicelo Dlamini

Commissioner
M Tyatyeka

Commissioner
M Le Roux

Commissioner
Violet Tyamzashe

Commissioner
CN Kok

Commissioner
Bernadette Muthien

Commissioner
Richard Botha

Commissioner
Julia Mabale

Commissioner
M Bethlehem

Commissioner
Reiner Schoeman

Commissioner
P Mkhize

Commissioner
P Ngove

Commissioner
Pumla Madiba

Commissioner
G Martin

Commissioner
MJ Mokgathle

Commissioner
M Jobson

Commissioner
MC Neluvhalani

Commissioner
Sheila Khama

Commissioner
R Trollip
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Overview of the Accounting Officer 

It gives me great pleasure to submit the Annual Report of the Commission for 
the Promotion and Protection of the rights of Cultural, Religious and Linguistic 
Communities for the 2013/14 financial year. During the year under review, the 
work of the Commission was guided by the following strategic priorities;

• Drive operational excellence
• Increased awareness and marketing
• Effective legal services and conflict resolution
• Enhanced research and policy development
• Monitoring and evaluation of the recommendations made

The 2013/14 Financial Year is a period where in the current Commission is concluding its five year 
term. In making sure that the Commission is visible the Commission created a new Communication 
and Marketing unit which its aim is to make sure that by 2014/15 the Commission reaches as many 
people as possible to make the work of the Commission known.

As we move forward we are resolved that we will do better in serving the communities  as we welcome 
the new Commission to give further strategic direction for the Commission. 

Mr TE Mafadza
Acting Accounting Officer
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PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Accounting Officer's Statement of responsibility for Performance Information 

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Commission's performance 
information and for the judgments made in this information.
The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control 
designed to reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of performance information.
In my opinion, the performance information presented in the Annual Report fairly reflects the 
performance of the Commission for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Mr. TE Mafadza
Acting Accounting Officer

Overview of the Commission's Performance 

Strategic outcome oriented goals

The work of the Commission for 2013/14 financial year was implemented under the following 
strategic outcome oriented goals;

Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal Goal Statement/Strategic Objectives

Drive Operational Excellence

Increase awareness and 
Marketing

Effective legal services and 
Conflict Resolution

Enhance Research and 
Development

Monitoring and Reviews

•  Providing strategic leadership
•  Operationalise community councils
•  Support roles including the provision of 
     HR management

•  Provision of sustainable communication and 
     marketing strategy
•  Provide community youth dialogues
•  Provision of Public Education and advocacy 
     on the C-R-L rights

•  Facilitation of conflict resolution in respect of 
     C-R-L rights
•  Formulation of recommendations to stakeholders

•  Establish network with research organisation and 
     research units in institutions of higher learning
•  Compile research papers to inform position on 
     C-R-L matters to Government
•  To research different cultural practices of communities

•  Develop monitoring and evaluation tool
•  Monitor implementation of recommendations
•  Make recommendations and amendment of policies 
     and legislation
•  Regular feedback to relevant stakeholders 
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End of term of the old commission and swearing in of new one

The 2013/14 financial year has been a year with mixed feelings between happiness and sadness.  It 
was the year in which Commissioners who were appointed in 2009 led by Chairperson Rev. Dr W 
Mabuza had to come to the end of their term while newly appointed ones led by the new Chairperson 
Ms T Mkhwanazi-Xaluva had to come in at the same time.  

Service delivery environment

In compliance with section 65 of the Public Finance Management Act, we take pleasure in providing 
an account of the manner and extent to which we have discharged our functions and duties during 
the 2013/14 financial period under the authority and mandate of the Commission for the Promotion 
and Protection of the Rights of Cultural, Religious and Linguistic communities Act of 2002.  The Act 
(19 of 2002) mandates us to promote and protect cultural, religious and linguistic Rights of 
communities.  This mandate is at the core of our performance and drives us to ensure that we foster 
mutual respect among cultural, religious and linguistic communities to co-exist in South Africa.

In pursuit of excellence in our work, it is worth reporting that measures have been put in place to 
improve human resource management and development in the Commission.  Key to this is the 
merger of Public Education and Advocacy and Community Engagement Units.  The rationale behind 
the merger of the two Units was to maximise the performance of the two Units in order to increase 
awareness of cultural, religious and linguistic rights in local communities.  The Commission envisage 
in coming up with strategies that will continue to seek ways in which its employees can be better 
utilized  in line with skills acquired while they were doing the work at the Commission.

Internship Programme

In the 2013/14 the Commission also made a significant contribution to the area of job creation 
through the facilitation and appointment of the unemployed into internship programme.  Some of the 
interns had an opportunity to also be sent to training related to the work they were doing in the 
Commission.   All Managers were also sent to governance training as a part of the measures put in 
place in assisting the Commission towards operational excellence.

Intensified Awareness Campaigns

A number of awareness campaigns were conducted as a commitment of the Commission to ensure 
that local communities are conscious of other groupings cultural, religious and linguistic Rights.  The 
Commission managed to resolve a number of cultural, religious and linguistic complaints which were 
registered in this financial year.  Against all odds, the Commission managed to sign agreements with 
other Organs of state as way of enhancing collaboration on issues that overlap.  This was mainly done 
to assist the Commission in resolving cultural, religious and linguistic conflicts particularly in 
situations where the powers of the Commission is limited to deal with such complicated cases, then 
the relevant organ of state that has such powers is requested to assist.
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In terms of community councils, the Commission managed to set up district community councils in 
Limpopo, North West, Eastern Cape, Mpumalanga, Northern Cape and Western Cape provinces.  
These were structures to coordinate the affairs of community councils in such provinces to the 
attention of the Commission.   The establishment of district community councils was also meant to 
assist the Commission in doing its work at local communities but they are also obligated to advise the 
institution on its work.   

Although the Commission is not sufficiently funded in comparison with other Chapter Nine 
institutions, its dedicated staff managed to work tirelessly during the year under review.  I am 
satisfied that the Annual Report accounts for the business and operations of the Commission. 

INVESTIGATIONS AND CONFLICT RESOLUTION ANNUAL REPORT NARRATIVE 

The objective of the unit was to: 
• Provide effective legal advisory services and conflict resolution 

The unit had 05 outputs related to the above objective, viz.:
• Conflict resolution framework
• Resolution of disputes in accordance with statutory requirements and the conflict resolution 

handling manual
• Formulation of recommendations to stakeholder
• Develop co-operation strategy with relevant organs of state pertaining to the enhancement 

of conflict resolution
• Legal drafts and opinions

In order to achieve these outputs, the following activities, in line with the strategic plan and additional 
activities, were carried out: 

1. Conflict resolution framework

The unit planned to revise it complaints handling manual.  In order to enhance efficiency and 
monitoring of complaints handling, the Unit had planned to procure an electronic case 
management system.  The complaints handling manual was revised.  The unit could not procure 
the electronic cases management system on account of funds being prioritized for other 
important matters such as the deposit for the new premises and installation of offices at the new 
premises, as well as the settlement between the Commission and the former CEO.  Should the 
unit have enough budget in the new financial year, the system will be procured accordingly.  

(ICR)
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2. Resolution of disputes in accordance with statutory requirements and the conflict resolution 
handling manual

The Unit had to handle cases through investigation, mediation, referrals and litigation at the 
equality court.  The unit received 75 complaints which were all handled.  No cases were referred 
to the equality court and also not mediated upon.  The approach was to follow up on cases with 
the alleged perpetrators, and to bring to their attention the laws and court judgments prescribing 
the interpretation and application of cultural, religious and linguistic rights of communities.  
Most of the alleged perpetrators heed the advice given to them by the Unit pertaining the 
promotion, protection and observance of rights of cultural, religious and linguistic communities. 

The complaints and requests were mainly around the issues of access to graves, exhumation of 
graves, recognition of traditional healers as marriage officers, denial of people's rights to wear 
traditional artefacts such as beads and bangles

Some of the matters were ultra vires the mandate of the Commission and were thus referred to 
relevant organs of state.  These included issues of land restoration; ban of people from a farm by 
the owner; defamation of character, etc

During the financial year 2012/13, the unit had produced two reports on “The law and practice in 
the workplace and institutions of learning: Dress code and challenges of traditional healers”, 
and “Public Holidays vs. Public Holy days: In pursuit of equality”.  These reports were only 
launched and handed over to relevant organs of state in the 2013/14 financial year on 17 April 
2013.  The reports served to propose recommendations to facilitate resolution of conflict 
between cultural and religious communities and organs of state caused by mischief in existing 
law or silence of the legislation on matters affecting the communities.

The Unit went an extra-mile by distributing the reports to places of Legal Deposits, all provincial 
government departments in SA, all portfolio committees at the National Assembly and provincial 
legislatures, all universities, etc.  The reports were meant to guide organs of state on how to 
handle cultural and religious matters discussed therein.  

3. Formulation of recommendations to stakeholder

With this output, the Unit sought to formulate recommendations to influence legislation by 
making inputs into proposed Bills or proposing amendment of existing legislation.  By influencing 
legislation, the Unit promotes and protects the rights of cultural, religious and linguistic 
communities; facilitates conflict resolution (proactively or reactively based on 
complaints/request) between cultural, religious and linguistic communities and organs of state; 
and enhance the impact made by the Commission.
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During the financial year under review the Unit formulated the following recommendations:

Amendment of the Regulations to the South African Heritage Resources Act to ensure that 
official languages of a concerned community are employed during consultation with the public 
regarding any application made to acquire permit from SAHRA for developmental purposes.  
Recommendation made to the Department of Arts and Culture;

Amendment of the Unemployment Insurance Fund Act to cater for individuals who have to take 
unpaid leave to undergo training as traditional healers to be paid their contribution to the fund on 
account of the fact that they would have lost income for some the required time of initiation.  The 
recommendation comes as a result of different people taking different periods, ranging between 
months and a year, to complete the training.  Recommendation made to the Department of 
Labour;

Amendment of the Commission's Act to enhance monitoring.  The Act should prescribe that, 
organs of state to submit annually reports on the measures that they have taken towards the 
realisation cultural, religious and linguistic rights; reports on the number of cultural, religious or 
linguistic rights complaints or alleged violation in their respective institutions; and submit 
diversity management plan to the Commission every two years.  Recommendation made to the 
Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs;

Amendment of the Marriage Act to make provision for recognition of traditional health 
practitioners as marriage officers.  Recommendation made to the Department of Home Affairs; 
and

Amendment of the General Notice 3003 of 2002 (Government Gazette 24071) relating to the 
administration of the Commission's Act by the Minister of Cooperative Governance and 
Traditional Affairs, not Provincial and Local Government.  Recommendation made to the 
Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs;

4. Develop co-operation strategy with relevant organs of state pertaining to the enhancement 
of conflict resolution

In order to enhance conflict resolution, the Unit has to cooperate with other organs of state 
whose mandate overlaps with that of the Commission and those who have more powers to assist 
the Commission in the execution of its mandate.  In order to establish and strengthen the 
cooperation relationship, the Unit held nine (09) seminar (one per province) engaging 
institutions such as the National Prosecuting Authority, the Public Protector, South African Police 
Services, Department of Basic Education, Pan South African Language Board, Cooperative 
Governance and Local Government Departments, Department of Arts and Culture, South African 
Human Rights Commission, Commission of Gender Equality, etc.  

Some of these institutions guaranteed their support to the Commission by signing a pledge 
document produced by the Unit.
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5. Legal drafts and opinions

The Unit had planned to produce 10 legal opinions/drafts.  14 opinions/drafts were ultimately 
produced.  The opinions and drafts concerned vetting and commenting on lease agreement, 
drafting memoranda of understanding, service level agreement, opinion concerning labour 
related matters of employees; dealing with the Promotion of Access to information Act request; 
drafting settlement agreement and mutual release between the Commission and the former 
Chief Executive Officer; drafting the Conditions of service for the employees, preparing 
responses in dealing the settlement between the Commission and former CEO; etc.

The unit had a legal intern who had to be mentored by the Senior Manager of the Unit. It is also 
imperative to highlight that the Senior Manager of the Unit acted as Chief Executive Officer of the 
Commission for the entire financial year under review.

RESEARCH AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT NARRATIVE REPORTS 

Introduction

The Research and Policy Development Unit in the financial year 2013 -2014 produced the following 
reports. That is, three covering cultural issues, three covering religious issues and three covering 
linguistic issues. These reports covered the following topics:

1. The importance of traditional storytelling in South Africa

The purpose of this report is to find ways in which tradition storytelling can be persevered and 
promoted in modern South Africa. Seminars were held in Free State, Northern Cape, North West, 
Eastern Cape, Kwa-Zulu Natal, Mpumalanga and Limpopo. 

Recommendations were tabled for the following stakeholders: 
• Department of Education
• South African Broadcasting Corporation (SABC)
• Department of Arts and Culture
• National Community Radio Forum (NCRF)
• The independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)
• Pansalb

2. Challenges facing the Khoisan communities in South Africa

The report looks at the challenges faced by the Khoisan communities in this country, highlighting 
that the most important challenge of them all is that of recognition of the Khoisan people as 
indigenous. Seminars were held in the Northern Cape, Western Cape, Eastern Cape, North West 
and Gauteng. 

Recommendations were tabled for the following stakeholders:
• Pansalb
• Sanparks
• Cogta
• Department of Education 
• Sahra and NHC
• SABC

(RPD) 



20 

3. The role of traditional healers in the health sector

The purpose of this report is to find ways in which 
traditional healers and medical doctors can work 
together. Seminars were held in Limpopo, North 
West, Nelspruit, Durban, Eastern Cape, Western 
Cape and Gauteng. 

Recommendation was tabled for the following 
stake holders: 

• Traditional Healers Organisation (THO)
• Department of health
• Employers

4. Satanic rituals in South African schools

The intention of this report is to engage communities and schools affected by Satanism acts and 
to research whether Satanism is a religion or not. Seminars were held in Gauteng, Western Cape, 
Eastern Cape and Mpumalanga. 

Recommendations were tabled for the following stakeholders:
• The Presidency 
• South African Police Service
• Department of Education
• Universities
• Chapter nine institutions
• Religious groups
• Department of education 

5. The role and use of Religion in Education 

This report aims to identify the role that religion has in education. Seminars were held in 
Gauteng, Western Cape, Free State, Limpopo and Kwa-Zulu Natal

Recommendations were tabled for the following stakeholders:  
• Department of education
• Religious groups

6. Local government's regulation of land usage by faith communities

This report seeks to find out if there is a need for land rezoning in the townships as most religious 
groups seem to struggle to obtain land on which to practice their various religious beliefs. 
Seminars were held in North West, Limpopo, Free State and Gauteng.

Recommendations were tabled for the following stakeholders:
• Religious groups
• Municipalities
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7. Usage of African language in commerce and trade

The purpose of this report is to highlight language inequality in commerce and trade in the 
country.  This report also intends to address language inequality in commerce and trade with the 
purpose of influencing the policies governing trade and commerce. Seminars were held in 
Limpopo, Gauteng, Kwa-Zulu Natal, North West and Free State. 

Recommendations were held tabled for the following stakeholders:  
• Department of trade and industry 
• Pansalb
• Banks
• Department of Education 
• Municipalities
• The Chamber of Commerce and Trade

8. The history of Isihlubi

The aim of this project is illustrate the importance of the usage of African languages that are not 
regarded as official languages in South Africa. The report serves to promote and protect 
languages like isiHlubi which are at a danger of dying out due to neglect and lack of exposure. 
Seminars were held in the following provinces, Kwazulu Natal, Eastern Cape and Western Cape.

Recommendations were tabled for the following stakeholders: 
• Pansalb
• Department of Education
• Human Rights Commission
• Media
• Amahlubi community
• Provincial language communities

9. Usage of African languages in broadcasting

Purpose of this report is to promote the usage of all South African official languages in 
broadcasting; this research aims to rekindle African languages. Seminars were held in Limpopo, 
Eastern Cape, Free State, North West and Gauteng. 

Recommendations were tabled for the following stakeholders: 
• Department of Education
• South African Broadcasting Corporation (SABC)
• Department of Arts and Culture (DAC)
• National Community Radio Forum (NCRF)
• The independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)
• Pansalb
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PUBLIC EDUCATION AND ADVOCACY (PEA)

Strategic Objective

•
Diversity Awareness

Introduction
The Public education and Advocacy Unit (PEA), in line 
with its objectives has during the year under review 
conducted public engagements aimed at promoting 
and protecting the rights of cultural, religious and 
linguistic communities. As part of its work, the PEA 
has conducted youth dialogues and education & 
awareness campaigns aimed at engaging 
communities in order to resuscitate their diminished 
and diminishing heritage. These engagements have 
also involved presenting on the work conducted by 
various units; also aimed at advocating making both 
civil society and government structures aware of 
possible violations of the rights of cultural, religious 
and linguistic communities and actions to be taken in 
this regard. Moreover, the targets in the year under 
review were areas that the CRL Rights Commission 
has never reached before to ensure maximum 
visibility. 

Enhance Cultural, Religious and Linguistic 

Public Education and Awareness Campaigns 

PEA planned nationwide public education and awareness campaigns as part of its operational and 
strategic commitment. The education and awareness campaign were done in various places across 
the country. The campaign was primarily targeting young people who are in schools and youth driven 
community based organisations. The aim of the programme was to engage the youth on issues of 
cultural, religious and language rights, mutual respect, social cohesion, coexistence and to raise 
awareness on the role of the CRL Rights Commission.  The particular focus on this specific age group 
was based on the fact that this age cohorts in terms of national official statistics constitute a large 
percentage of the entire population.  

Areas visited include Northern Cape Province in the Ritchie and Plaatfontein and Matatiele in the 
Eastern Cape.  The focus was also on reaching out to the youth in communities making them aware 
of the existence of the CRL Rights Commission and the role the Commission is to play in communities 
particularly on issues of Culture Religion and Linguistic rights.
The overall background of the CRL Rights Commission's structure and its role was presented on; also 
an outlook of the work the commission had done since its existence. The unit took an opportunity to 
also explain on how to get the forms to register and get recognised as a Community Council of the 
CRL Rights Commission as well as on how to lodge complaints; complaints forms were also handed 
out and it was explained on how such may be sent to the CRL Rights offices.  
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Youth Dialogues 

PEA Unit conducted dialogues that were primarily 
targeting young people and youth-driven community 
based organization.  PEA conducted dialogues with youth 
of Matatiele in the Eastern Cape, Limpopo in Polokwane 
and in Thohoyandou areas.   Another dialogue took place 
in the Northern Cape Province in the Ritchie and 
Plaatfontein areas and the last one was held in the 
Northwest Province in Mahikeng.    

The discussions were on how the CRL Rights Commission 
collaborate with heritage or cultural youth groups in 
provinces; How can the CRL Rights Commission 
encourage the youth to participate in issues of culture, 
religion and language; and about enhancing youth 
participation in terms of promoting and protecting 
culture, religion and language. There was a strong 
suggestion by various youth groups at the meeting for the 
CRL Rights Commission to establish a youth desk that 
would deal directly with the issues that are of concern to 
the youth pertaining to culture, religion and language.  

Preserving our Cultural, Religious and Linguistic Heritage

The CRL Rights Commission also commemorated Heritage month which is celebrated in South 
Africa during the month of September.  This was through engagements that  took place in 
Mpumalanga Province in the area of Bushbuckridge Ga- Josefa, under the theme Preserving our 
Heritage: Reflecting on Cultural, Religious and Linguistic Issues.  This engagement was primarily 
targeting young people and youth-driven community based organizations, as well as the elders 
including tihosi ta Mapulana to assist in passing on the knowledge to the young people.  Another 
celebration session was held in Polokwane. 

Subsequent to such engagement, the CRL Rights Commission encouraged the establishment 
collaboration with communities and build sustainable partnerships with some forums of young 
people in different provinces. Through this, the youth were encouraged and to develop and engage 
on issues of tolerance, peaceful co-existence, principles of Ubuntu, cultural, religious and linguistic 
rights, amongst others.  



24

Public Education Mission 
on Religious Tolerance 

The Public Education and Advocacy unit responded to a public request that was brought to the CRL 
Rights Commission through media Production Company that has been commissioned by SABC to 
produce a local content reality TV pro-gramme.  The request was that the CRL Rights Commission 
assists in engaging, advising on issues of religious tolerance among residents of Sunnyside in the 
City of Tshwane, specifically parties involved in the dispute.  This emanated from the complaints that 
residents have lodged with a reality TV show pertaining to unbearable noise caused by the churches 
in their surroundings. 
It was alleged that there were unbearable noises caused by three churches that hold their services in 
the same block of flats.  A complainant claimed that residents have on several occasion lodged a 
complaints with the churches that are situated in a residential building, they also complained with 
the building management and to the City of Tshwane municipality on several occasions but had 
never received a positive response. 

Discussions were held with and amongst parties involved, the resident's representative and the 
pastor of one of the church. PEA Unit assisted both parties on how the parties could reach an 
amicable agreement and a compromise.  The discussions were recorded on camera by the Stop 
nonsense television production team, as part of the show. The CRL Rights Commission was advised 
that the recordings would be aired on SABC 2 in October 2013.
 
Representing CRL Rights Commission in various forums
The Unit has been in the forefront with regards to interacting and engaging with the relevant 
communities and stakeholder.  The Unit, as part of its public education objective, has represented 
the CRL Rights Commission in various forums with government and civil society in order to educate 
both civil society and government officials about the CRL Rights Commission with specific reference 
to cultural, religious and linguistic rights of various communities.    

 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT UNIT (CE)

Objectives  
• To enhance community councils participation.

Introduction & background
In 2013/2014 financial year, the Community 
Engagement Unit has enhanced participation of 
cultural, religious and linguistic communities through 
establishing and recognizing local and district 
community councils.    

The main objective of establishing district community councils's structures was to localize the 
participation of cultural, religious and linguistic communities in order to advance the work of the 
Commission at their communities.  In addition, the district community councils's structures are also 
meant to identify issues relevant to the work of the Commission in order for the Commission to 



CRL COMMISSION 2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT 25 

intervene in enhancing the promotion and protection of cultural, religious and linguistic rights of 
communities at their locality.  Furthermore, the event was also used to share information about the 
community councils and the rationale for their establishment and recognition. Lastly, the event was 
again used as a platform to introduce cultural, religious and linguistic communities and structures to 
the mandate and the work of the Commission.  

According to the founding Act of the Commission (19 of 2002),  community councils' are also meant 
to preserve, promote and develop the culture, religion or language of the community for which it is 
recognized, as well as to assist the Commission to achieve its objectives in line with the founding act.  
It is noteworthy to mention that recognition and establishment of district and local community 
councils were a continuation of the work that the Unit had started in the past years.

Establishment and recognition of district and local Community Councils.

Districts and local community councils were established in the Free State, North West, Limpopo, 
Mpumalanga, Eastern Cape, Northern Cape and Western Cape provinces.  

Objectives of establishing both districts and local community councils.
• To assist in the preservation of cultural, religious and linguistic archives of the communities 

which they represent.
• To assist the Commission in educating the youth about indigenous languages, culture and 

traditions.
• To act as resources of information for the Commission on cultural, religious and linguistic rights 

of communities.
• To assist in safeguarding the cultural heritage of the communities that they represent.
• To assist in conflict resolution of cultural, religious and linguistic communities in their respective 

local areas in consultation with the CRL Rights Commission.

In all meetings, the Commission was represented by different people including staff and 
Commissioners.  In different occasions, Mr Mafadza and Mr Gopane outlined the purpose of the 
meeting and gave direction as to how the process of establishing the district community council was 
to be conducted.  On the other hand, Commissioners Jobson, Tyatyeka, Neluvhalani, Le roux and Kok 
presented the mandate of the Commission and how both district and local community councils can 
assist the Commission in attaining its objectives.   Eastern Cape meetings especially Umthatha was 
also attended by Inkosi Madzikane who encouraged other communities to continue protecting and 
promoting their cultures, religions and languages, while in other provinces were representatives 
from the local royal houses.  

The initiative to establish both districts and local community councils was welcomed by CRL Rights 
communities and relevant stakeholders.  There was an overall agreed expression that the formation 
and recognition of district community councils present a golden opportunity for long and fruitful 
relations between communities, the commission and government.  It was during these activities 
were community councils expressed that legislations and by-laws passed by government should also 
embrace their cultural, religious and linguistic practices.



In the Western Cape Province, a representative of Pan South African Language Board expressed 
gratitude to the work that the Commission was doing.  It was expressed that the formation and 
recognition of community councils also provides an important avenue for local communities to 
advocate for the development of their languages.

The Commission for Gender Equality also encouraged communities to begin to engage on a dialogue 
that addresses issues of culture versus gender equality and women empowerment.  

The recognition of community councils was to be understood as a platform created by the 
Commission for already existing structures to function more efficiently and an opportunity for non-
organised community to begin a process of establishing themselves and apply to the Commission for 
recognition wherein they will be able to share information, programmes, expertise and where 
possible resources.  

Many of the issues that kept coming back during the discussions in the establishment and 
recognition of community councils relates to the need for the young people to be involved in 
promoting and protecting the cultural, religious and linguistic practices of their birth.  It was 
expressed that many young people are focusing a lot on the Western cultures than their own.  The 
community councils also emphasized that indigenous languages should be offered in all South 
African schools without any exception.

In conclusion the establishment of district community councils and recognition of local cultural, 
religious and linguistic councils was a successful process in all provinces that were targeted in 
2013/14 financial year. 

26 
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Annual Performance information by Programme

PROGRAMME NAME  INVESTIGATION AND CONFLICT RESOLUTION

CRL COMMISSION 2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT 

Effective legal 
advisory 
services and 
conflict 
resolutions

Conflict resolution 
framework

Approve, 
reviewed 
conflict 
resolution 
framework

1 0 Approved
No Variance 

Resolution of 
disputes in 
accordance with 
statutory 
requirements and 
conflict resolution 
manual

Number cases 
handled

80 cases 25 The unit received only 75 cases which 
were handled during the financial year 
under review.  The target of 100 cases 
was based on baseline of the previous 
year.  The Unit therefore only works on 
the actual number of cases received, 
i.e. 75 cases.

Formulations of 
recommendations to 
stakeholders

10 
recommendati
ons per annum

16
recomm-
endations

5 Lack of human resource capacity

Develop cooperation 
strategy with relevant 
organs of states 
pertaining to 
enhancement of 
conflict resolution

9 seminars 
conducted

0 0 No variance.  The original strategic 
plan had 09 as a target.  A typo took 
place during the amendment of the 
strategic plan wherein the number 
changed from 09 to 08.     

9  agreements 
(MoUs/Pledge
s) signed

0 6 pledges Lack of cooperation from organs of 
state.  Late submission of signed 
pledges by other institutions to the 
Commission  

Legal drafts and 
opinions

Number of 
opinions

5 4 More requests were forwarded to the 
Unit against the target.  The target is 
founded on the baseline.

Measurable
Objectives

Outputs
Performance

Indicators

Baseline 
Target
12/13

Actual Performance
Variance

Reason for
VarianceTarget Activity Annual Achieved

2013/14

1 Conflict 
resolution 
framework

Review conflict 
resolution 
framework

Reviewed complaints 
handling and procedure 
manual;
Procured law reports 
and journals to establish 
a law library for 
referencing purposes

100 cases Cases handled 
per annum

75 cases handled

10
recomm-
endations

Drafting of 
recomm-
endations

5
recommendations 
annually

8 Seminars and 
charters

9 seminars conducted

9 Sign 
agreements 
with organs of 
state annually

3 pledges signed

10 Produce legal 
drafts and/or 
opinions

14 annually
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PROGRAMME NAME   RESEARCH AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT

PROGRAMME NAME   PUBLIC EDUCATION AND ADVOCACY

Enhance 
research and 
development 
institutions

Influence of policy 
and legislation on c-
r-l matters in all 
public and private 

12 research 
papers

12 1 The unit decided in the fourth quarter 
to do a review, data analysis and 
proof reading of the past nine reports 
due to lack of human resource 
capacity 

Conduct ad-hoc 
research on 
impromptu c-r-l 
matters as reported 
in the media

4 position 
papers

0 4 position 
papers

There were no ad-hoc requests and 
therefore no position papers were 
compiled

Enhance c-r-l 
diversity

Community youth 
dialogue

9 youth 
dialogues

9 provincial 
youth 
dialogues

4 Due to lack of human resource 
capacity

Awareness 
programmes on c-r-l 
rights

9 awareness 
programmes

9 provincial 
youth 
awareness 
programmes

3 Due to lack of human resource 
capacity

Resource information 
centre

20 
information 
materials

0 0 No variance

Measurable
Objectives

Measurable
Objectives

Outcomes

Outcomes

Performance
Indicators

Performance
Indicators

Baseline 
Target
12/13

Baseline 
Target
12/13

Actual Performance

Actual Performance

Variance

Variance

Reason for
Variance

Reason for
Variance

Target

Target

Activity

Activity

Actual Achieved
2013/14

Actual Achieved
2013/14

12 Conduct 
research 
projects

9 research projects

4 position 
papers

Compile 
position papers

0 position papers

9 provincial 
youth dialogues

Conduct youth 
dialogues on 
CRL matters

5 provincial youth 
dialogues

9 provincial 
youth awareness 
programmes

Conduct 
provincial 
awareness 
programmes

6 provincial awareness 
programmes

20 information 
material

Collection of 
information 
material

20 information material
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PROGRAMME NAME   COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

PROGRAMME NAME   CORPORATE SERVICES
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Enhance 
community 

Recognised district 
community councils

4 district community 
councils

4 district community 
councils per annum

0 No variance

Recognised local 
community councils

8 local community 
councils

8 local community 
councils

0 No variance

Policy on community 
councils

Approved policy on 
community councils

1 approved policy 1 Awaits approval  
by the in-coming 
Commission

Measurable
Objectives

Outcomes
Performance

Indicators

Baseline 
Target
12/13

Actual Performance
Variance

Reason for
VarianceTarget Activity Actual Achieved

2013/14

4 district community 
councils per annum

Facilitation of recognition of 
district community councils

4 district community 
councils

8 local community 
councils

Facilitation of recognition of 
local community councils

8 local community 
councils

1 policy per annum Drafting of policy  1 policy was 
developed 

Drive 
operational 
excellence

Approved and established 
operational structure

Aligned organizational 
structure with strategic 
objectives

Draft 
organisational 
structure

0 No variance

Human Capital Strategy Approved human capital 
strategy

0 1 Awaits approval  by the in-
coming Commission

IT Governance framework Approved IT Governance 
framework

0 1 Awaits approval  by the in-
coming Commission

Disaster Recovery plan Approved IT disaster 
recovery plan

Draft IT 
Recovery plan

1 Awaits approval  by the in-
coming Commission

File plan Approve revised file 
plan

1 1 Awaits endorsement from in-
coming Commission before 
approval by National Archives

Records management policy Approved policy 0 1 Awaits approval  by the in-
coming Commission

Measurable
Objectives

Outcomes
Performance

Indicators

Baseline 
Target
12/13

Actual Performance
Variance

Reason for
VarianceTarget Activity Actual Achieved

2013/14

Approved 2013/14 
organisational 
structure

Revise 
organizational 
structure

Approved 2013/14 
organisational structure

Approved 2013/14 
human capital 
strategy

Develop Human 
Capital Strategy

1 Human capital strategy 
drafted

Approved 2013/14 
IT Governance 
framework

Develop IT 
Governance 
Framework

1 IT Governance framework 
drafted

Approved 2013/14 
IT disaster recovery 
plan

Develop IT 
recovery plan

1 IT disaster recovery plan
drafted

Implement 
reviewed and  
approved file plan

Review the file 
plan

File Plan revised and 
reviewed

Approved records 
management policy

Records 
management 
policy

Records management policy
drafted
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PROGRAMME NAME   FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION
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Measurable
Objectives

Outcomes
Performance

Indicators

Baseline 
Target
12/13

Actual Performance
Variance

Reason for
VarianceTarget Activity Actual Achieved

2013/14

Financial Reports Monthly expenditure 
reports 

12 expenditure 
reports 

12 monthly 
expenditure 
reports 

Compile monthly 
expenditure reports 

12 monthly 
expenditure reports 

0  No variance 

Salary interface done 
monthly 

12 salary 
interface 

12 monthly 
salary interface 

Perform salary 
interface 

12 monthly salary 
interface 

0  No variance 

Monthly accurate 
financial statements 

12 financial 
statements 

12 monthly 
financial 
statements 

Compile monthly 
financial statements 

12 monthly financial 
statements 

0  No variance 

All audit queries 
answered and rectified 
by 31 March 

All queries 
answered and 
rectified 

Audit queries 
answered within 
two days 

Answer all audit 
queries within 2 
days 

Audit queries 
answered within two 
days 

0  No variance 

Annual financial 
statements by 31 May 

1 Annual 
Financial 
Statement 

Annual Financial 
Statement 
submitted for 
auditing 

Prepare annual 
financial statements 

Annual Financial 
Statement 
submitted for 
auditing by 31 May 

0  No variance 

Financial policies Register of approved 
policies by 31 March 

12 reports on 
policies revised 
and 
implemented 

12 reports 
policies revised 
and 
implemented 
per annum 

Revision, 
formulation and 
implementation of 
policies 

12 reports policies 
revised and 
implemented per 
annum 

0  No variance 

Procurement policies Approved reviewed 
policies by 31 March 

Approved policy Reviewed and 
implemented 
procurement 
policy 

Review and 
implement 
procurement policy 

Reviewed and 
implemented 
procurement policy 

0  No variance 

Asset management Assets register by 31 
March 

1asset register 1 asset register 
per annum 

Maintain asset 
register 

1 asset register per 
annum 

0  No variance 

Asset verification report 4 asset 
verification 
report 

4 asset 
verification 
report 

Carry out 4 asset 
verifications 

4 asset verification 
report 

0  No variance 

Monthly asset 
reconciliation report 

1 asset 
reconciliation 
report 

1 asset 
reconciliation 
report 

Perform monthly 
asset reconciliation 
report 

1 asset 
reconciliation report 

0  No variance 

Accurate payment to 
suppliers 

Monthly supplier 
reconciliation 

12 supplier 
reconciliation 

12 supplier 
reconciliation 

Perform monthly 
supplier 
reconciliation 

12 supplier 
reconciliation 

0  No variance 

100% payments made 
within 30 days from 
receipt of invoice 

4 reports on 
payments of 
suppliers 

4 reports on 
payments of 
suppliers 

Effect payments 
within 30 days from 
receipt of invoice 

4 reports on 
payments of 
suppliers 

0  No variance 

Approved and updated 
supplier database 

12 reports on supplier 
database 

1 updated 
supplier 
database 

1 updated 
supplier 
database 

1Update the  
supplier database 

1 updated supplier 
database 

0  No variance 

 

 

 Provide reliable, accurate 
and effective financial and 
procurement 
management 
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Enhance visibility 
of the Commission 

Approved 
stakeholder plan 

0 Approved stakeholder 
plan 

Develop stakeholder 
plan 

Draft stakeholder 
plan 

0 Awaits approval  by 
the in-coming 
Commission 

15 stakeholder 
engagement 

0 9 provincial legislature 
liaison meetings 

Engage stakeholders 0 provincial 
legislature liaison 
meetings 

9 Lack of human 
resource capacity 

2 NPO/NGO 
partnerships 

 0 NPO/NGO 
partnerships 

2 Lack of human 
resource capacity 

2 OISD meetings 2 OISD meetings 0 No variance 
2 FISD meetings 2 FISD meetings 0 No variance 

120 media 
statements 

108 120 media 
statement/ 
interventions 

Prepare and approve 
media responses/ 
interventions 

24 media 
statement/interve
ntions 

96 Lack of human 
resource capacity 

 5 direct 
intervention 
annually 

0 5 direct interventions Engage relevant 
parties annually 

5 direct 
interventions 

0  No variance 

2 Advance the 
realization of 
cultural, religious 
and linguistic 
rights: Policy and 
legislative input 

Legislation and 
policy 
recommendations 

15 approved 
legislation and 
policy 
recommendations 
per annum 

25 15 recommendations 
per annum 

Approve all legislation 
and policy 
recommendations 

05 
recommendations 
made 

10 Time constraints 
owing to 
commissioners 
focusing on the 
internal 
investigations.  
These 
recommendations 
and more others 
from research 
reports will be 
looked into by the 
new Commissioners 
in the 2014/15 
financial year.  

Measurable
Objectives

Outcomes
Performance

Indicators

Baseline 
Target
12/13

Actual Performance
Variance

Reason for
VarianceTarget Activity Actual Achieved

2013/14

1 Position the 
Commission as 
immediate point 
on matters of 
culture, religion 
and language 
rights 

  



Annual Performance information by Programme

PROGRAMME NAME   OFFICE OF THE CHAIRPERSON Cont...

32

Recommendations 
monitoring plan 

Approved 
recommendations 
monitoring plan 
per annum 

0 7 follow up and /or 
sitting of the Sec 7 
investigation 
committee 

Approved 
recommendations 
monitoring plan and 
monitor 
implementation of 
recommendations 

0 follow up and /or 
sitting of the Sec 7 
investigation 
committee 

7 Time constraints 
owing to the 
prioritisation of the 
internal investigation 
which the 
Commissioners had 
to see completed at 
the end of their 
term, i.e. January 
2014.  

3 Enhance 
effectiveness 
and efficiency of 
the Commission 

Achieved objective 
in the strategic 
plan 

Approved strategic 
plan budget 

1 4 Plenary meetings 
and 4 Section 22 
committee meetings 

Monitor 
implementation of the 
strategic plan and 
budget 

4 Plenary meetings 
and 4 Section 22 
committee 
meetings 

0   No variance 

Organisational 
Transformation 
plan 

Approve 
organizational 
transformation 
plan (OTP) 

0 Approved 
organisational 
transformation plan 

Approve 
organizational 
transformation plan 

Approved 
organisational 
transformation 
plan 

0  No variance 

Financial and 
internal controls 

Approved reviewed 
financial and 
internal control 
plan per annum 

0 Approved financial 
and internal control 
plan 

Approved reviewed 
financial and internal 
control plan 

0 Financial and 
internal control 
plan reviewed 

1  Time constraints 
owing to the 
prioritisation of the 
internal investigation 
which the 
Commissioners had 
to see completed at 
the end of their 
term, i.e. January 
2014.  

 

 

Measurable
Objectives

Outcomes
Performance

Indicators

Baseline 
Target
12/13

Actual Performance
Variance

Reason for
VarianceTarget Activity Actual Achieved

2013/14
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Risk Management 
plan 

Approved Risk 
management plan 

Draft Risk 
Management 
Plan 

Approved 
Reviewed Risk 
Management 
Plan 

Review Risk 
Management Plan 

Draft Reviewed 
Risk Management 
Plan 

1 Awaits approval in the 
next financial year 

0 4 risk reports Draft risk reports 1 risk reports 3 Owing to the fact that 
a Risk Officer is yet to 
be appointed 

Business 
performance and 
report per annum 

4 business 
performance report 
per annum 

0 4 business 
progress 
reports 

Conduct 
performance 
evaluations and 
compile a 
progress report 

4 business 
progress reports 

0 No variance 

Organisational 
transformation plan 

Approved 
organisational 
transformation plan 

0 Approved 
organisational 
transformation 
plan 

Approve the 
organisational 
transformation 
plan 

Approved 
organisational 
transformation 
plan 

0  No variance 

Communication and 
marketing strategy 

Communication and 
marketing strategy 

0 Approved 
communicatio
n and 
marketing 
strategy 

Develop and 
implement 
communication 
and marketing 
strategy 

Communication 
and marketing 
strategy 

1 Due to lack of human 
resource capacity  

Effective internal 
audit services 

4 Compliance and 
organisational 
performance reports 

4 quarterly 
reports 

4 quarterly 
reports 

Produce 4 
quarterly 
performance 
reports 

4 quarterly 
reports 

0  No variance 

 4 quarterly Audit 
Committee meeting 

 4 quarterly 
meeting 
minutes 

Produce 4 
quarterly meeting 
minutes 

4 quarterly 
meeting minutes 

0  No variance 

 Develop three year 
rolling strategic plan 
and one year 
operational plan 

0 Approved 
three year 
rolling and 
operational 
plan 

Approve three 
year rolling and 
operational plans 

Approved three 
year rolling and 
operational plan 

0  No variance 

 
 

Measurable
Objectives

Outcomes
Performance

Indicators

Baseline 
Target
12/13

Actual Performance
Variance

Reason for
VarianceTarget Activity Actual Achieved

2013/14

 Monitoring and 
evaluation of 
organisational 
performance 
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Part C

Risk Management 

The Commission is committed to maintaining an effective, efficient and transparent system of risk 
management as enshrined in its Risk Management Plan. The plan is guided by and strategy that says 
risk register is updated, monitored and owners are encouraged to monitor risks and the impact they 
have on the functioning of the Commission.

Fraud and corruption 

The Commission subscribe to National Anti Corruption Hotline which is located in the Public Service 
Commission (PSC). Staff members are encouraged to use this hotline to report and make 
confidential disclosures about the suspected corruption and fraud. There are other internal 
mechanism put in place internal to deal with issues of corruption and fraud.

Minimising Conflict of Interests

Senior Management Services (SMS) members, Bid Specification Committees, Bid Adjudication 
Committee, Bid Evaluation Committee, and Audit Committee, Recruitment and Selection panel 
members and Procurement Officials are required to declare financial and business interest

Code of conduct

All new appointees are furnished with set of policies which includes the Code of Conduct. The new 
employees are required to read and sign the copy of the Code of Conduct and return to HR to place it 
in the personal file.

The Commission will from now on write letter to employees identified through CIPRO who are found to 
be conducting remunerative work outside the Commission, for them to indicate why they did not seek 
permission and sought reasons why the Commission should take disciplinary steps against them.

Internal Audit and Audit committee 

Internal Audit functions within an approved Internal Audit Charter in line with prescripts of the PFMA, 
treasury Regulations and the Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditors issued by 
the Institute of Internal Auditors. Management provides objective assurance the Commission 
regarding the effectiveness management, control and governance processes in order to assist the 
organisation to achieve its objectives.

The Commission has an Audit Committee which is made up of external members and two members 
of the Commission and operates within approved Audit Committee Charter in line with the prescript 
of the PFMA and treasury Regulations. The function of the Committee is to monitors the 
Commission's compliance with the relevant legislation and other governance processes. It 
continuously assesses the performance and finances of the Organisation. 

Governance
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Corporate Services and Human Resources Oversight 

During the year under review Corporate Services had the following priorities and were all achieved;

• Developed the Assessment tool that is aligned to the Performance Management 
Development System. 

• Achieved approved organisational structure and the file plan. 
• Reviewed the compulsory biometric system.
• Implementation of the intranet system for the Commission.
• Successfully arranged team building exercise for the CRL Rights Staff.
• Secured new premises with less rental payment and successfully relocated the offices to the 

new offices which have improved visibility and accessibility for the public.
• Successfully arranged women's day celebration for the CRL women as part of Employee 

wellness programme.
• Arranged training for the interns and Corporate Governance workshop for the CRL for the 

CRL Management

Part D

Corporate Services and Human Resources Management
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Report of the Audit Committee

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

Audit Committee Members and Attendance

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should meet at least four times 
per annum as per its approved terms of reference. During the 2013/2014 financial year, six (6) 
meetings were held. The term of the previous audit committee members ended on the 31 December 
2013 and new members were appointed on the 1 January 2014, the new members had one audit 
committee meeting during the last quarter of the 2013/2014 financial year. Four audit committee 
members were appointed and one declined the appointment.

Audit Committee Member                                                             Number of Meetings Attended

Old Members
Mr. D Coovadia (Chairperson until 31 December 2013)                                 5  of 6
Mr. BP Mkhize (Until 31 January 2014)                                                             4 of 6
Ms. MJ Mokgatle (Until 31 January 2014)                                                         3 of 6
Ms. M Mothipe (Until 31 December2013)                                                          5 of 6

New Members
Mr. B Madliwa (Chairperson Appointed 1 January 2014)                                  1 of6
Mr.  Baloyi (Appointed 1 January 2014)                                                            1 of 6
Mr. H Hlomane (appointed 1 Janaury 2014)                                                      1 of 6
Prof. LD. Mosoma (Appointed 1 March 2014)                                                    0 of 6

Audit Committee Responsibility

We report that we have operated and performed our oversight responsibilities independently and 
objectively and adopted appropriate formal terms of reference in our charter in line with the 
requirements of Section 38(1) (a) of the Public Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 1999 and 
Treasury regulation 3.1. We further report that we conducted our affairs in compliance with the 
charter.

The Effectiveness of Internal Controls

In line with the PFMA and the King III Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit 
provides the Audit Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are 
appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the 
identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.
The Audit Committee would like to report that the systems of internal controls implemented by 
management were assessed to be adequate to mitigate the risks identified, however, in all reviews 
conducted the controls were found to be ineffective in mitigating the risks identified by management 
due to lack of commitment from management in implementing those controls and ensuring that the 
controls are working as intended.

Part E

Financial Information
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Despite these controls being ineffective, the Audit Committee is of the view that the system of 
internal controls will be effectively addressed by concerted effort and hard work from management 
and officials.

Internal Audit

The internal audit function is in-house and has only one internal auditor. Based on the reports 
presented by the internal auditor, we are of the opinion that the internal audit function is satisfactory 
but the unit needs to be adequately resourced to cover a wider area of review.

Risk Management

The CRL Rights Commission's risk management process has just been implemented   and it is in a 
progressive state, Audit Committee believes that management is committed to ensuring that the 
process is mature and that it is prioritised in management meetings and Plenary Meetings of the 
Commission.

The Quality of In-year Management Quarterly Reports Submitted in Terms of the PFMA

The Audit Committee is not satisfied with the content and quality of the quarterly reports prepared 
and issued by the Accounting Officer of the Commission during the year under review. The content 
and quality of performance information matters and financial disclosures requires further attention.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:

• Reviewed and disclosed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the 
annual report;

• Reviewed the Auditor-General South Africa's management letter and managements 
responses thereto;

• Discussed with management the performance information of the entity;
• Reviewed the Commission's compliance with  legal and regulatory provisions;
• Reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices; and
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit. The Audit Committee concurs 

and accepts the AGSA's conclusions on the annual financial statements, and is of the 
opinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the 
report of the AGSA.

Meeting with Auditor-General South Africa

The Audit Committee has met with the Auditor-General South Africa to ensure that there are no 
unresolved issues.

Mr. B. Madliwa
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
30 August 2014
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Accounting Officer's Statement of Responsibility for Annual Financial Statement

I hereby acknowledge that the Annual Financial Statements (AFS) of the Commission has been 
submitted to the National Treasury.
I acknowledge my responsibility for the accuracy of the accounting records and the fair presentation 
of the Annual Financial Statements and confirm, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the 
following;

• the AFS has been prepared in accordance with modified cash bases of accounting and 
relevant guidelines specified/issued by National Treasury,

• the AFS is complete and accurate,

• all amounts appearing on the AFS have been cast and cross-cast,

• the AFS is free from material misstatements, including omissions; and 

• accounting estimates are reasonable in the circumstances.

Yours faithfully

Mr.  TE Mafadza
Acting Accounting Officer
Commission for the Promotion and Protection of the Rights of Cultural, Religious and Linguistic 
communities.
31 May 2014
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 
COMMISSION FOR THE PROMOTION AND PROTECTION OF THE RIGHTS OF CULTURAL, RELIGIOUS 
AND LINGUISTIC COMMUNITIES 

Introduction 
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Commission for the Promotion and Protection of the 

Rights of Cultural, Religious and Linguistic Communities (CRL Rights Commission) set out on pages 
43 to 71, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the statement of 
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

Accounting officer's responsibility for the financial statements 
2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of 
South Africa, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as the accounting officer 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor-general's responsibility 
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 

conducted my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 
2001) (PAA), the general notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. 
Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

 
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

audit opinion. 

Opinion 
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

the CRL Rights Commission as at 31 March 2014, and its financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended, in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
7. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following 

findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected 
programmes presented in the annual performance report, non-compliance with legislation as well as 
internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each 
subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not 
express an opinion or conclusion on these matters. 
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Predetermined objectives 
8. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported 

performance information for the following selected programmes presented in the annual 
performance report of the CRL Rights Commission for the year ended 31 March 2014: 

a. Research and Policy Development: Annual Performance Report on page 28 
b. Investigation and Conflict Resolution: Annual Performance Report on page 27
c. Community Engagement: Annual Performance Report on page 29 
d. Corporate Services: Annual Performance Report on page 29

9. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and 
reliability. 

10. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was 
presented in accordance with the National Treasury's annual reporting principles and whether the 
reported performance was consistent with the planned programmes. I further performed tests to 
determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time 
bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury's Framework for managing programme 
performance information (FMPPI). 

11. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, 
accurate and complete. 

12. The material findings in respect of the selected programmes are as follows: 

Usefulness of reported performance information 
13. The period or deadline for delivery of targets must be specified. A total of 100% of the targets were 

not time bound for all selected programmes. 

Reliability of reported performance information 
14. I did not raise any material findings on the reliability of the reported performance information for the 

selected programmes. 

Additional matters 
15. I draw attention to the following matters: 

Achievement of planned targets 
16. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 27 to 33, for information on the achievement of 

planned targets for the year. 

Compliance with legislation 
17. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the CRL Rights Commission has complied with 

applicable legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. 
My findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the 
general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows: 

Expenditure management 
18. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of 

the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 9.1.1. 

19. Contractual obligations and money owed by the entity were not settled within 30 days or an agreed 
period, as required by section 38(1)(f) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury 
Regulation 8.2.3. 
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Procurement and contract management 
20. Contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders who did not submit a declaration on whether they 

are employed by the state or connected to any person employed by the state, which is prescribed in 
order to comply with Treasury Regulation 16A8.3. 

21. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that quotations were awarded to bidders 
based on points given for criteria that were stipulated in the original invitation for quotations, as 
required by SCM Regulation, Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(a) and Preferential Procurement 
Regulations. 

Asset management 
22. Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as required by 

section 38(1)(d) of the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 10.1.1(a). 

Financial statements 
23. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not fully prepared in accordance with the 

prescribed financial reporting framework as required by section 40(1)(b) of the PFMA and Treasury 
Regulation 18.2. 

Internal control 
24. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, report on performance 

against predetermined objectives and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are 
limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the 
performance against predetermined objectives and the findings on non-compliance with legislation 
included in this report. 

Leadership 
25. The accounting officer did not adequately exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial and 

compliance with laws and regulations and related internal controls.
 
26. The accounting officer did not in all instances exercise oversight responsibility over the review of 

monthly reports and the financial statements prior to their submission for audit. The material 
misstatements identified with regard to non-current assets, current assets, liabilities, revenue, 
expenditure and disclosure items were subsequently corrected. 

Financial and performance management 
27. Management did not in all instances prepare regular, accurate and complete financial reports that 

are supported and evidenced by reliable information. 

28. Management did not in all instances review and monitor compliance with laws and regulations. 

Pretoria 
31 July 2014



1 



CRL COMMISSION 2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT 

Annual Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2014



44 

Statement of Financial Position for the year ended 31 March 2014

 

Notes 2014 2013  

  R' 000   R' 000  

 
   

Assets    

Current assets    

Cash and cash equivalents 11 920 2 258

Trade and other receivables 12 395 327
  

1 315
 

2 585
 

Non - current assets  

Property, plant and equipment 13 1 291 1 127

Intangible assets 14 19 29

Trade and other receivables 12 802 468

  
2 112

 
1 624

 

    

Total assets  3 427 4 209 

    

    

Liabilities    

Current liabilities  

Trade and other payables 15 74 2 714 

Provisions 16 889 1 083

Straight-lining operating lease 26 40 500

Total liabilities  
1 003

 
4 297

 

    

Total net assets  2 424 (88) 

Net assets    

Reserves  

Accumulated surplus / (deficit) 17 2 424 (88)

  

Net assets  3 427 4 297 
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Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 31 March 2014 

Revenue    

    

Non-Exchange Revenue   

Transfers from government entities  2 32 503  34 227

Other income 3 25  94

Exchange Revenue   

Finance income 4 97 213

    

Total revenue
  

32 625 34 534 

    

Expenses    

  

Administrative expenditure 5 2 558 5 383

Audit fees 6 1 292 1 148

Employee costs 7 18 646 16 592

Other operating expenditure 8 7 139 10 965

Depreciation and amortisation 9 475 423

Finance cost 10 2 -

  

Total expenses   30 113 34 511 

    

(Deficit)/Surplus for the period  2 512 23 

 
 

Notes 2014 2013 

 R' 000   R' 000    
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 31 March 2014

 

 

 

Accumulated 

Surplus/(deficit)

 

 

 

Balance at 31 March 2012  (111) (111) 

Surplus for the year ended March 2013  23 23 

Balance as at 31 March 2013   (88) (88) 

Surplus for year ended 31 March 2014     2 512 2 512 

Balance as at 31 March 2014  2 424 2 424 

Notes  Total  

 R' 000   R' 000    
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2014

 

 

   

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Cash receipt from transfer payments 2 32 503 34 227 

Interest income 4 97 213 

Cash paid to suppliers  (14 638) (15 723) 

Cash paid to employees 7 (18 644) (16 682) 

Interest paid 10 (2) - 

Net cash (utilised in)/generated from operating 

activities 18 (684) 2 035 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  13&14 (653) (373) 

Net cash used in investing activities  (653) (373) 

Net  increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

  

(1 337) 1 662 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   2 257 595 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 11 920 2 257 

  

    

Notes 2014 2013 

 R' 000   R' 000    
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Accounting Policies for the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

Accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with 
Section 38 of the Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999).

Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by the GRAP 
reporting framework have been developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 
3 and the hierarchy approved in Directive 5 issued by the Accounting Standards Board.  

The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are 
in accordance with historical cost convention, except for the cash flow information, which is 
prepared on a cash basis, and unless specifically stated otherwise.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are 
set out below. 

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses have not been offset except where offsetting is 
required or permitted by a Standard of GRAP. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently with those used to present the previous year's 
financial statements, unless explicitly stated.  The details of any changes in accounting policies 
are explained in the relevant policy.

1.2 Critical Judgements And Key Sources Of Estimation Uncertainty
  

The entity makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the current and subsequent financial years.  Estimates and judgments are 
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  
There does, however, not appear to be a significant risk that these assumptions will cause 
significant adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the subsequent 
financial years. Significant judgments include:

· Leave, Bonus and Penalties and Interest Provisions

Accumulated leave, a bonus and acting allowance provision have been provided for at 
reporting date. Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on 
the information available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included 
in note 16.

Provisions are measured at management's best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the obligation at the reporting date.
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Accounting Policies for the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

· Useful lives and residual values

The Commission re-assesses the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and 
equipment on an annual basis. In reassessing the useful lives and residual values of 
property, plant and equipment management considers the condition and use of the 
individual assets, to determine the remaining period over which the asset can and will be 
used.

1.3 Currency

These financial statements are presented in South African Rand since it is the currency in which 
the majority of the Commission transactions are denominated. The amounts disclosed in the 
financial statements had been rounded off to the nearest thousand rand.

1.4 Revenue

· Budget Allocation

Revenue comprises of budget allocations for the activities of the Commission budgeted for 
by the Department for Cooperative Government and Traditional Affairs as transfer 
payments. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally recognised to the extent 
that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is no 
liability to repay the amount.

· Interest income

Interest received is recognised on an accrual basis, taking into account the principal 
outstanding using the effective interest rate method.

· Other income

Amounts written off as bad debts, but which had subsequently been recovered are 
recognised as other income. Provisions that were raised during the previous reporting 
period, but which did not materialise are recognised as other income.

1.5 Operating leases

Leases of assets where substantially the entire risks and rewards incident to ownership are 
effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under 
operating leases are charged to the statement of financial performance on a straight line basis 
over the period of the lease.

cont...
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1.6 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment are recognised in the financial statements if:
§ It is probable that the economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to the         

Commission.
§ The cost of an asset or its value can be measured reliably.

Measurement

Initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost.

Subsequent measurement

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and adjusted for any impairment. 

The estimated useful lives of assets are:

Computer equipment  3 to 10 years

Office furniture and fittings 10 years

Office equipment 5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles                     10 years

Useful lives and residual value are assessed on an annual basis.

1.7 Impairment of assets

The Commission assesses all its assets to determine whether there is any indication that an 
asset may be impaired. If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable 
amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 
amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the 
asset belongs is determined. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of 
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets, carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or 
amortisation, is recognised immediately in the statement of financial performance. 

Accounting Policies for the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

cont...
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1.8 Intangible assets

    Recognition

Intangible assets are recognised in the financial statements if:

• It is probable that the economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to the 
Commission.

• The cost of an asset or its value can be measured reliably.

Measurement

Initial measurement

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost.

Subsequent measurement

Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less any subsequent accumulated amortisation 
and adjusted for any impairment.

    The estimated useful lives are as follows:

       Computer software 3 to 10 years

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed on an annual basis.

1.9 Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include cash and cash 
equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables.

• Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Commission statement of 
financial position when the Commission becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument.

• Measurement 

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which includes transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured as set out below:

Accounting Policies for the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

cont...
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Accounting Policies for the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

• Financial assets

The Commission's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents and trade 
and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with 
registered banking institutions with maturities of three months or less and are not 
subject to insignificant interest rate risk.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost and the carrying amount of 
these assets approximates to their fair value.

Trade and other receivables mainly arise due to deposits paid for the rental of office 
space. Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost and the carrying 
amount of these assets approximates to their fair value.

• Financial liabilities

The Commission's principal financial liabilities are trade and other payables. Trade and 
other payables do not bear interest and are stated at amortised cost.

1.10 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset if there is any intention to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously and if a legally enforceable right to set off, exists.

1.11 Provisions

· Recognition

The Commission recognises a provision when a present legal or constructive 
obligation exists as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation.

· Measurement 

The amount recognised is the best estimate at the financial position date of 
expenditure required to settle the obligation.

cont...
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1.12 Employee benefits

Contributions to the defined contribution pension plan and defined benefit pension plan 
are charged to the statement of financial performance in the year in which they relate. The 
Commission has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions once the 
contributions have been paid because the defined benefit plan is regulated by the state 
while the defined contribution plan is a provident fund.

The cost of short – term employee benefits, such as vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses 
and non monetary benefits are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employee 
renders services that increase their entitlement.

1.13 Comparative figures

Comparative figures have been adjusted where necessary, to conform to changes in 
presentation for the current year.

1.14 Going concern

The financial statements of the Commission are prepared on the going concern basis.

1.15  Effect of new standards of GRAP issued

The following standards of GRAP that have been issued are not yet effective.

GRAP 108 – Statutory Receivables

ASB Issue date:  September 2013

Effective date:  1 April 2015

New standard of GRAP: Prescribes the accounting requirements for the recognition, 
measurement, presentation and disclosure of statutory receivables. 

GRAP 20 – Related Parties

ASB Issue date:  June 2011

Effective date:  1 April 2014

New standard of GRAP: Prescribes the requirements that a reporting entity's financial 
statements contain for the disclosures necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its 
financial position and surplus or deficit may have been affected by the existence of related 
parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties. 

Accounting Policies for the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 
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Accounting Policies for the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

GRAP 32 – Service Concession Arrangements:  Grantor

ASB Issue date:  August 2013

Effective date:  1 April 2015

New standard of GRAP: To prescribe the accounting for service concessions arranged by 
the grantor, a public sector entity. 

GRAP 18 - Segmented Reporting

ASB Issue date:  June 2011

Effective date:  1 April 2016

New standard of GRAP: To establish principals for reporting financial information by 
segments. 

GRAP 105 – Transfer of functions between entities under common control

ASB Issue date:  November 2010

Effective date:  1 April 2014

New standard of GRAP: To establish accounting principles for the acquirer and transferor in 
a transfer of functions between entities under common control.

GRAP 106 – Transfer of functions between entities not under common control

ASB Issue date:  November 2010

Effective date:  1 April 2014

New standard of GRAP: To establish accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer 
of functions between entities not under common control.

GRAP 107 - Mergers

ASB Issue date:  November 2010

Effective date: 1 April 2014

New standard of GRAP: To establish accounting principles for the combined entity and 
combining entities in a merger. 

cont...
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1.16 Related Parties

Transactions with key management are recognised as related party transactions. Key 
management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Commission. All individuals from the 
level of Executive Director and Commissioners are regarded as key management in terms 
of the definition of the financial reporting standard.

Close family members of key management are considered to be those family members who 
may be expected to influence, or to be influenced by key management individuals, in their 
dealings with the entity.

1.17 Unauthorised, fruitless and wasteful and irregular expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted for, expenditure that 
is not in terms of the conditions of an allocation received from another sphere of 
government, entity or organ of state and expenditure in the form of a grant that is not 
permitted in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 29 of 1999). 
Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the Statement of Financial 
Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the 
Statement of Financial Performance.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have 
been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is 
accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial 
Performance.

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Public Finance Management Act 
(Act No. 29 of 1999), the State Tender Board Act (Act No. 86 of 1968) or is in contravention 
of the Commission's supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes 
unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the 
Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for 
as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.18 Budget information

Comparison of budget and actual amounts are presented in a note in the financial 
statement: Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts.

The Commission only presents the final budget amounts.

Differences (variances) between the actual and budgeted amounts are presented.

Accounting Policies for the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 
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Accounting Policies for the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

The financial statements and budget are not presented at the same basis as the financial 
statements which are prepared on an accrual basis and the budget on a cash basis of 
accounting. A reconciliation between the surplus/(deficit) for the period as per the 
statement of financial performance and budgeted surplus/(deficit) is included in the 
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts.

1.19 Borrowing cost

It is inappropriate to capitalise borrowing cost when, and only when, there is clear evidence 
that it is difficult to link the borrowing requirements of an entity directly to the nature of 
expenditure to be funded, i.e. Capital or current.

Borrowing costs are recognised and expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

 1.20 Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of 
which will be confirmed only be the occurrence of non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events that are beyond the control of the CRL Rights Commission: alternatively, a 
contingent liability is a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised 
because of the following: 

- It is not probable that an outflow of recourses embodying economic benefits of service 
potential will be required to settle the obligation; or

- The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are 
disclosed in note 20.

cont...
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

   2014   2013 

   R' 000   R' 000 

2 Revenue   

 
Transfers received from the Department of Co-operative 
Government and Traditional Affairs 32 503 34 227 

    

3 Other Income   

 Liabilities not materialised 16 94 

 Disposal income 8 - 

  25 94 

4 Finance income   

 Interest on call account 97 213 

 

5 Administrative expenditure   

 General and Administrative Expenses   

 - Advert recruitment 41 2 

 - Internal audit 14 100 

 - Insurance 68 127 

 - Catering 466 718 

 - Stationery and printing 374  1 830 

 - Venues and facilities 307 1 833 

 - Acquisition of non capital equipment 40 17 

 - Bank charges 12 12 

 - Municipal Improvement Levy 26 21 

 - Water and electricity 859 482 

 - Municipal charges 115 57 

 - Common area electricity 20 17 

 - Plants flowers and decorations 2 - 

 - Rates and taxes 214 167 

  2 558 5 383 

6 Audit fees   

 Consists of:   

 
- Fees paid for an independent audit by the Auditor 
General SA 1 292 1 148 

 

 

cont...
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

2014   2013 

 R' 000   R' 000 

7 Employee costs   

 Salaries 17 214 15 325 

 - Basic salary 12 286 9 766 

 - Commissioners remuneration 1 016 1 297 

 - Other non-pensionable allowances 3 913 4 208 

 - Leave provision - 54 

 

 

Defined Pension Contribution Plan Expense and Social 

Contributions (Employer Contribution) 1 432 1 267 

 Unemployment insurance fund 73 55 

 Pension fund  557 534 

 Provident fund 801 679 

 Total employee cost  18 646 16 592 

 Staff Compliment 36 42 

 

8 Other Operating Expenditure   

 Staff training and development 164 4 

 Donations - 5 

 Loss on disposal of assets 25 - 

 Penalties 1 - 

 Consultants and contractors 769 1 027 

 - Pastel System support 98 76 

 - Other consulting fees 671 951 

 Software licences 97 49 

 Marketing Cost 127 1 737 

 - Promotional items 127 1 737 

 National Skills Development Levy 182 129 

cont...
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 Maintenance, Repairs and Running Cost 185 274  

 - Property and buildings 171 255

 - Machinery and equipment 4 7

 - Repairs and running cost vehicles 8 12

 - Removal office furniture 1 -

 Travel and Subsistence 2 372 5 096 

 - Air transport 464 2 411 

 - Accommodation 1 099 1 701 

 - Car rental 383

427

 472 

 - Other  512 

Other Operating Expenditure continued

 Courier and delivery services 97 89 

 Telecommunication cost 496 459 

 Leases 2 624 2 096 

 Buildings 2 372 1 928

 Parking Head Office 252 168

  

 Total Other Operating Expenditure 7 139  10 965 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

2014   2013 

 R' 000   R' 000 

cont...
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9 Depreciation and amortisation  475 423  

    

10 Finance cost   

 Finance cost  2 -  

    

11 Cash and cash equivalents 

 Cash in demand deposit account 

 Cash in call account 

 Cash on hand 

 Total cash and cash equivalents 

19 45 

896 2 207 

5 5 

920 2 257 

 

All cash and cash equivalents are available for use. The cash and equivalents were not 

pledged as a security for any financial liabilities. 

 

12 Trade and other receivables   

 Non-current assets 

 Deposits 

 Current assets 

 Prepayments lease agreement 

 Other receivables 

 Total trade and other receivables 

802 

802 

395 

243 

152 

1 197 

468 

468 

327 

297 

30 

795 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

2014   2013 

 R' 000   R' 000 

cont...
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

cont...  

 

13

 

Property, plant and equipment

 

 Computer 

Equipment  

 Office 

Furniture & 

Fittings  

 Office 

Equipment  

 Motor 

Vehicles   Total Year ended March 2014  

Carrying amount at the 

beginning of the year  

Gross carrying amount at the 

beginning of the year  

Accumulated depreciation at 

the beginning of the year  

Movement  
Additions  
Disposal 
Accumulated depreciation on 

disposal  
Depreciation charge  
Carrying amount at the end of 

the year  
Gross carrying amount at the 

end of the year  
Accumulated depreciation at 

the end of the year  

157  

774  

(617)  

81  
224  
(46)  

44  
(141)  

238  

952  

(714)  

683  

1 246  

(563)  

(96)  
31  

-  

-  
(127)  

587  

1 277  

(690)  

192  

818  

(626)  

195  
398  

(441)  

419  
(181)  

387  

775  

(388)  

95  

204  

(109)  

(16)  
-  
-  

-  
(16)  

79  

204  

(125)  

1 127  

3 042  

(1 915)  

164  
653  

(487)  

463  
(465)  

1 291  

3 208  

(1 917)  

 

 Computer 

Equipment  

 Office 

Furniture & 

Fittings  

 Office 

Equipment  

 Motor 

Vehicles   Total Year ended March 2013  

Carrying amount at the 

beginning of the year
 

Gross carrying amount at the 

beginning of the year
 

Accumulated depreciation at 

the beginning of the year
 

Movement
 

Additions
 

Disposal
  

Depreciation charge
 

Carrying amount at the end of 

the year
 

Gross carrying amount at the 

end of the year
 

Accumulated depreciation at 

the end of the year
 

310
 

774
 

(464)
 

(153)
 

-
 

(153)
 

157
 

774
 

(617)
 

453
 

922
 

(469)
 

230
 

324
 

(94)
 

683
 

1 246
 

(563)
 

298
 

777
 

(479)
 

(111)
 

42
 

(146)
 

192
 

818
 

(626)
 

108
 

204
 

(96)
 

(13)
 

-
 

(13)
 

95
 

204
 

(109)
 

1 169
 

2 677
 

(1 508)
 

(47)
 

365
 

(407)
 

1 127
 

3 042
 

(1 915)
 

The Commission owns two motor vehicles which were purchased during 2005/6 financial year which
have not been fully utilised resulting in low mileage. Management estimates that the residual of both 
vehicles is 20% of its gross carrying value. 
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14  Intangible Assets  

 

Computer Software Year ended March 2014

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Gross carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Accumulated depreciation at the beginning of the year

Movements

Depreciation charge

Carrying amount at the end of the year

Gross carrying amount at the end of the year

Accumulated depreciation at the end of the year

29

108

(79)

(10)

(10)

19

108

(89)

Total 

29

108

(79)

(10)

(10)

19

108

(89)

The Commission re-assesses the useful lives of computer software on an annual basis. 

Management considers the condition and use of each asset, to determine the remaining useful life 

of each asset.  

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

cont...

Year ended March 2013

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Gross carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Accumulated depreciation at the beginning of the year

Movements

Additions

Depreciation charge

Carrying amount at the end of the year

Gross carrying amount at the end of the year

Accumulated depreciation

Computer Software 

37

100

(63)

(7)

8

(15)

29

108

(79)

Total 

37

100

(63)

(7)

8

(15)

29

108

(79)
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15

 

 

Trade and other payables 

 

 Trade creditors 

 Payroll liabilities 2

  

 Total 

72

 

74

2 714

-

2 714

16 Provisions  

16.1 Leave pay 

 

  Carrying amount at the beginning of the year    

 Amounts used 

 Unused amounts reversed during the year 

 Additional provisions made 

  

685

(45)

(640)

555

555

370

(17)

(353)

685

685

 

16.2 Bonus Provision 

 

16.3  Penalties and Interest Provision 

 

 
 Carrying amount at the beginning of the year   

 

 
Unused amounts reversed during the year 

 
 

-

-

-

97

(97)

-

  Carrying amount at the beginning of the year   
 

 Amounts used 

 Additional provisions made 

  

349

(349)

335

335

261

(261)

349

349

  

  

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

2014   2013 

 R' 000   R' 000 

cont...
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

2014   2013 

 R' 000   R' 000 

cont...

16.4 Acting allowance 

  

17 Accumulated surplus/(deficit)   

 Net surplus for the current year 

 Net accumulated (deficit) brought forward 

 Total 

2 512

(88)

2 424

23

(111)

(88)

 

18 Notes to the statement of cash flows  

 Surplus from operations 

 Depreciation and amortisation expense 

 (Decrease) /Increase  in provisions 

 Loss on disposal of assets 

 Straight-lining of leases 

    

 Working capital changes   

 (Decrease) / increase in payables 

 (Increase) in receivables 

 Net cash (utilised in)/generated from operating activities 

2 512

475

(194)

25

(460)

2 358

(3 042)

(2 640)

(402)

(684)

23

423

355

-

(201)

600

1 435

1 542

(107)

2 035

 

  Carrying amount at the beginning of the year  

 -

 Amounts used 

 Additional provisions made 

  

 Total Provisions  

49

(49)

-

-

889

 

49

49

1 083
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19  Gifts and donations    

 No gifts or donations were received or made during the period under review.   

 20  Contingent Liabilities 

 Management reports that no contingent liability is expected.  

21  Remission and ex gratia payments  

No remissions or ex gratia payments were made during the year under review.  

22  Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
 

Irregular expenditure
           

2013/2014                

2013/2014                

               

2012/2013

2012/2013

 

R’ 000

R’ 000

    

 

 R’ 000

R’ 000

 

Opening Balance                 6 712                                                       6 147 

Incurred during year     115                                                        565 

Closing Balance                 6827                                          6 712 

 

 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

                                                            

 
Opening Balance           

       

762

                                                            

741 

 Incurred during year         
       

1
              

21 
 

Closing Balance             
  

763 
                                                            

762
 

 

 

 

  

Irregular expenditure to the value of R 115 429 (20012/13  -  R 564 692  was incurred in the 
current year. 

Previous financial year matters have been reported to the National Treasury and still awaiting 
response; therefore, none of the expenditure has been condoned by National Treasury. In the 
investigation of the reported irregular expenditure by the Commission no disciplinary proceedings 
had been taken. 

 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure to the value of R 960 (2012/13 – 21 436) was incurred in the 
2013/14 financial year. 

Previous financial year matters have been reported to the National Treasury and still awaiting 
response; therefore, none of this expenditure has been condoned by National Treasury. 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

cont...
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23 Related parties  

Non Executive Management (Commissioners) 

  
     

2014
 

2013
 

 

Appointment 
Date

 

Basic 
Salary

 

Structural
Salary

 

Provident 
/Pension 

funds 
contribution

Fees 
 

Other 

Benefits
 

Total
 

R’ 000

Total
 

R’ 000
 

WM Mabuza – 
Chairperson (second 

commission) 

TNJ Mkhwanazi-

Xaluva Chairperson 

(third commission)
 

HJ Mabale-
 

Deputy 

Chairperson (second 

commission)

 
DL Mosoma Deputy 

Chairperson (third 

commission)

 M Le Roux

 MD Jobson

 SO Gabier

 M Bethlehem

 WA Knoetze

 
CN Kok

 
G Martin

 
DM Matebula

 
MC Neluvhalani

 

BP Mkhize

 

JM Mokgathle

 

D Moodley

 

P Ngove

 

N Zulu

 

M Tyatyeka

 

01/02/2009 

01/03/2014
 

01/02/2009
 

01/03/2014

 

01/02/2009

 01/02/2009

 10/02/2009

 01/02/2009

 01/02/2009

 
01/02/2009

 
01/02/2009

 
01/02/2009

 
01/02/2009

 

01/02/2009

 

01/02/2009

 

01/02/2009

 

01/02/2009

 

01/02/2009

01/02/2009

722

52
 

535
 

44

 

-

 -

 -

 -

 -

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

-

228

23
 

208
 

29

 

-

 -

 -

 -

 -

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

-

-

7

70

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

122

-

-

-

-

18

74

-

82

70

69

118

-

92

63

68

97

73

67

-

-

2

-

-

19

-

-

23

7

-

-

21

6

2

-

131

5

20

951

82

815

73

18

94

-

82

93

76

118

-

112

128

63

68

229

79

87

981

 
-

 
846

 

-

 

54

 

69

 

6

 

125

 

125

 

115

 

78

 

169

 

96

 

112

 

89

 

71

 

155

59

227

Total

  

1 353

 

489

 

77

 

1 014

 

236

 

3 169

 

3 378

 

  

Senior management emoluments are disclosed in note 25

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

cont...



CRL COMMISSION 2013/14 ANNUAL REPORT 67 

24   Audit Committee Members

 

  

  

D Coovadia 

M Mohohlo 

MS Mothipe 

TN Baloyi 

MG Hlomane 

MM Madliwa 

Total 

34

- 

16 

4 

4 

7 

65 

2

- 

1 

9 

1 

- 

13  

36

- 

17 

13 

5 

7 

78  

49

22 

28 

- 

- 

- 

99  

 

25   Senior Management Emoluments 
       

 

Executive 
management 

and 
directors 

Appointment 
Date

Resignation 
Date

 

Basic
Salary

 

Structural
Salary

 

Performance 
bonus

 

Provident 
/Pension 

funds 
contribution

Fees

Other 

Other 

benefits

benefits

 

Chief Executive 

Officer –
 

PS 

Moreroa
 

Chief Financial 

Officer -

 
CM Smuts

 
Senior Manager –

 TNJ Mkhwanazi-

Xaluva

 Senior Manager –

 
TE Mafadza

 Senior Manager –

 
TA Mabasa

 Senior Manager -

 
KA Sedupane

 Senior Manager –

BR Makeketa

 

01/10/2010  

31/12/2013 
 

01/06/2006
 

15/10/2007 

31/12/2012

 

01/04/2008

 

01/10/2012

 
01/10/2012

 
01/12/2012

 

1 819

500

-

493

463

463

463

 

219

257

-

302

201

400

240

 

-

 
16

-

15

-

8

6

 

64

75

-

64

69

60

69

 

-

-

-

11

7

12

56

 

 
2 101

 
847

 

-

 

885

 

740

 

943

834

 

 
922

 
790

 

593

 

802

 

355

 

375

255

 
Total

  
4 200

 
1 617

 
45

 
402

 
86

 
6 350

 
4162

 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 
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2014
 

2013
 

Total
 

R’ 000

Total
 

R’ 000

2014
 

2013
 

Total
 

R’ 000

Total
 

R’ 000
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

cont... 

26  Straight-Lining of Operating Lease 

 

27  Operating lease 

The CRL Rights Commission rents premises with lease rentals of R 151 626 per month 

according to a lease agreement that commenced on 1 May 2009, with a lease term of five 

years. The escalation of the operational lease is set at 10%. 

 Rental
Parking

al  Tot

2015
1 year
R’ 000

222
20                      

242

Total
R’ 000

222            
20

242 
   

28  Financial Instruments 

 Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents trade and other receivables and 

trade and other payables. All financial assets:  

 Notes 

Loans and receivables at amortised cost  
Trade and other receivables 12 
Cash and cash equivalents 11 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost   
Trade and other payables 15 

 

 Credit risk 

Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are exposed to a low c

Cash and deposits are held with an AA-rated registered banking institution and are regarded 
as having insignifiant credit risk.

redit risk and no amounts are overdue. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

 Straight-lining of operating lease 

 Total 

40

40  

500

500  

2014   2013 
 R' 000   R' 000 

954
920

74
 

498
2 257

2 714

2014   2013 
 R' 000   R' 000 
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Liquidity risk 

Trade and other payables 

The Commission is only exposed to liquidity risk with regard to the payment of its trade 

payables. These trade payables are all due within the short-term. The Commission manages 

its liquidity risk by holding sufficient cash in its bank account, supplemented by cash available 

in a call account. 

Interest rate risk 

Trade and other receivables 

 Trade and other receivables are exposed to an insignificant amount of interest rate risk.  

 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash in the call account is kept at a maximum in order to maximise interest earned on any 

cash. 

 
2014 2013 

 
R’ 000 R’ 000 

Increase in surplus reported for the year 
Effect of a 100 basis point increase in interest rates  

9 22 

   
Effect of a 100 basis point decrease in interest rates   
(Decrease)in surplus reported for the year (9) (22) 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

cont...
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29 Statement of Comparison of budget and Actual Amounts 

 

 
Actual 

R’ 000 

Budget 

R’ 000 

Variance 

R’ 000 

Revenue    

Transfer     

Finance Income    

Other income    

Less Expenses    

Administrative expenditure    

Audit fees    

Staff costs    

Other operating expenditure    

Finance cost    

(Deficit)  / surplus before depreciation and 

amortisation    

Less depreciation and amortisation 

32 625

32 503

97

25

29 637

2 558

1 292

18 646

7 139

2

2 988

475 

32 503

32 503

-

-

32 503

3 971

1 200

19 868

7 463

1

-

- 

122

-

97

25

2 866

1 413

(92)

1 222

324

(1)

2 988

475 

    

Surplus/(deficit) for the period 2 513          - 2 513 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

cont...

A surplus in respect of staff cost was created in respect of resignations during the year. The 

vacancies are in the process of being filled. A surplus was generated in respect of 

administrative expenditure due to commitments made in respect of the new lease of office 

buildings. These commitments could only be settled in the 2014/15 financial year.  Retention 

of these funds were requested from and approved by National Treasury.  
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30  Going Concern  

 During the current financial operating period the CRL Rights Commission received a baseline 

allocation of R 32,503 m. These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern 

basis because the existence of the CRL Rights Commission is protected in the Constitution of 

the Republic of South Africa.  CRL Rights Commission has accumulated surplus of R2,4 m. 

31  Events after reporting date  

 Management of the CRL Rights Commission reported matters or circumstance arising since 

the year ended 31 March 2014 under contingent liabilities.  

32  Authorisation of annual financial statements  

 The Accounting Officer of the CRL Rights Commission, Mr E Mafadza, authorised the audited 

financial statements for issue on the 31 July 2014.   

 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 
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